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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of

RCCPL Private Limited (Formerly known as Reliance Cement Company Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of RCCPL Private Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31% March, 2019, the statement of profit and loss, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, its profit, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact.
Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is obtained at the date of this auditor's report.

i S - i 3
N o e r ~Con
(s 7 NEW ! /D' 1
".'-.r}ﬁr N FRN 10
‘\‘Q‘:-i_“_ r..“‘}’_, _,',“"F/



Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and
records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(@

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

@

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow
statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 315 March, 2019 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315 March, 2019 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has not paid / provided any managerial remuneration to its directors
during the year in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. Therefore reporting under this
clause is not applicable during the year under audit.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

I. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 32 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any on long term long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred during the year to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Regn. No. 109208W

Yy et

Place : Kolkata (Ajay Gupta)
Dated : 30" April, 2019 Partner

Membership No. 90104



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
Report on even date)

i a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, the fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of
the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies

were noticed on such verification.

c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 2A on fixed assets to the financial statements,

are held in the name of the Company.

i Asinformed to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management except goods
in transit. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. Discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of the inventories between the physical inventories and book records were not material, having

regard to the size and nature of the operations of the Company.

i The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties required to be covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under
section 185 of the Act. The Company has not made any investment, given any loan, given any guarantee or

provided any security in connection with a loan within the provisions of section 186 of the Act.

v The Company has not accepted deposits within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Rules

framed there under.

vi We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the records for the year with a view to determine whether they are accurate and

complete.

vii a) According to the records of the Company, the Company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, goods and services tax, cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
We are informed that there is no liability of the Company on account of employees' state insurance during the
year. There were no arrears of undisputed statutory dues as at 31% March, 2019, which were outstanding for a

period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no disputed dues which have remained unpaid as on 31 March, 2019 in respect of income tax
or duty of customs. The disputed dues of different years, relating to service-tax, sales-tax or or duty of excise
or value added tax, which have remained unpaid as on 31st March, 2019 for which appeals are pending as

under:
Nakure: of staiute Nature of dues Amount (in | Period to which the Forum where_' dispute is
Crores) amount relates pending
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 2.70 | Nov'13 to Dec’16 CESTAT, New Delhi
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 0.24 | Aug'16 to June’17 | Commissioner (Appeals)
Bihar Value added tax | VAT 1.21 | 2016-17 Addl. Commissioner
Act, 2005 (Appeals)
The Bihar Goods and Transition 0.63 | July'17 to Commissioner (Appeals)
Services Tax Act, 2017 | amount (VAT) March'2018
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On the basis of the verification of records and information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowings to banks. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings
from financial institutions / Government in the books of accounts at any time during the year. The Company has
not issued any debentures. Therefore the question of default in repayment of dues of debenture holders does
not arise.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial / further public offer (including debt instruments) and
term loans taken during the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

According to information and explanations given to us and the representation obtained from the management,
no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers and employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid or provided any
managerial remuneration within the meaning of section 197 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi)
of the Order are not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the representation obtained from the
management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-| of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 109208W
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Place : Kolkata (Ajay Gupta)
Dated : 30" April, 2019 Partner

Membership No. 80104



Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements’ of our report on
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2019 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31*

March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 109208W

Gy FHAC

Place : Kolkata (Ajay Gupta)
Dated : 30" April, 2019 Partner
Membership No. 90104




RCCPL Private Limited

Formerly known as Reliance Cement Company Private Limited
CIN No : U26940MH2007PTC173458

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019
(Rs. in crores)

. Asat Asat

Paricols Nofas 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property. plant and equipment 2A 2,519.61 2,625.13
Capital work-in-progress 2B 536.00 344 14
Other Intangible assets 2C 10.66 11.70
Financial assets

Loans 3 - 0.01

Others 4 77.21 6599
Deferred tax Assets ( Net ) 5 110.28 118.04
Other non-current assets 6 96.26 38.64
Non Current Tax Asset ( Net ) 4.07 4.07
Subtotal (A) 3,354.08 3,207.72
Current Assets
Inventories 7 197.98 158.68
Financial assets

Investments 8 100.88 -

Trade receivables 9 85.01 61.05

Cash and cash equivalent 10 30.25 18.25

Others 11 263.30 410.88
Other current assets 12 50.19 83.26
Subtotal (B) 727.61 732.12
Total Assets (A+B) 4,081.70 3,939.84
EQUITY AND LIIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 13 312.82 312.82
Other Equity 777.75 639.43
Total equity (C) 1,090.57 952.25
LIABILITIES
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 14 2,129.13 2,217.62

Other Financial Labilities 15 133.56 12017
Provisions 16 11.06 10.12
Total Non Current Liabilities (D) 2,273.75 2,347.91
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 17 - 28.54

Trade Payables Due to 18

Micro enterprises and small enterprises 3.22 0.18
Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 212.60 215.88

Other financial Liabilities 19 413.16 299.38
Provisions 20 0.49 0.53
Other Current Liabilities 21 87.40 9517
Current Tax Liabilities ( Net ) 0.51 ~
Total Current Liabilities (E) 717.38 639.68
Total Equity and Liabilities (C+D+E) 4,081.70 3,939.84
As per our attached report of even date.

For V.Sankar Aiyar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.109208W
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Ajay Gupta kI'-la_rail'l V. Lodha Bachh Raj Nahar
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.090104 (DIN: 00394094) {DIN: 00049895)
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Chief{Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 30.04.2019




RCCPL Private Limited
Formerly known as Reliance Cement Company Private Limited
CIN No : U26940MH2007PTC173458

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2019

(Rs. in crores)

Pariiilie Notes Year ended Year ended
e 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

INCOME
Revenue from operations 22 2,648.90 2,185.05
Other income 23 11.46 4.82
Total Income 2,560.36 2,189.87
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 24 405.93 241.80
Purchases of stock in trade 25 0.44 0.98
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 26 (10.91) 16.94
Employee benefils expense 27 98.15 93.56
Finance costs 28 203.81 222 .68
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 157.53 155.44
Other expenses 30 1,514.98 1,368.92
Total Expenses 2,369.93 2,100.32
Profit before exceptional items 190.43 89.55
Exceptional items =
Profit / (Loss) before tax 190.43 89.55
Tax Expenses

Current Tax 4426 16.70

Deferred Tax 7.79 (118.07)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 138.38 190.92
Other Comprehensive Income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (0.09) 0.10
Tax Effect on above (0.03) 0.03
Other comprehensive income for the year -0.06 0.07
Total comprehensive income for the year 138.32 190.99
Earning per Equity Share of Rs 10 each 31
Basic & Diluted (Rs) 4.42 6.10
As per our attached report of even date,
For V.Sankar Aiyar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No.109208W

//// /f___/,/ g Lot Sty
Ajay Gupta “Harsh V. Lodha Bachh Raj Nahar
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.090104 (DIN: 00394094) {DIN: 00049895)
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Place : Kolkata Aryn Agarwal Manoj Kumar Mehta

Dated : 30.04.2019 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




RCCPL Private Limited

Formerly known as Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

CIN No : U26940MH2007PTC173458

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019

Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

( Loss ) / Profit after Exceptional ltems & before Tax
Adjustments for :

Depreciation & Amortisation

Interest Income

Gain on Sale of Mutul Fund (FVTPL)

Fair Value of Mutul Fund (FVTPL)
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net)
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Fluctuations
Finance Costs

MTM of forward contract

Unwinding of interest on mine closure liability
Unwinding of interest on Loan

Loss on extinguishment of financial liabilities

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes

Adjustments for -

Trade Receivables

Inventories

Loans

Other financial asset

Other Current Asset

Other Non Current Asset

Trade Payables

Other Financial liabilities

Other Liabilities

Provisions

Cash generated from operations
Direct Taxes Paid

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Tangible Asset

Purchase of Intangible Asset
Purchase of Capital Work In Progress
Capital Advances

Sale of Tangible Assets

Purchase of Investments

Sale of Investments ( Net )

Gain on Mutual Fund

Investment in Fixed Deposits Net
Interest received

Net Cash used in Investing Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Long term Borrowings

Repayments of Long Term Borrowings

(Repayments) / Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings
Interest Paid

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance)
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)

Break up of Closing Cash & Cash Equivalent
Current Account

Cash in Hand

Cheques on hand

Bank Deposits

(Rs. in crores)

As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
190.43 89.55
157.53 155.44
(2.39) (0.19)
(4.40) (0.31)
(0.32) “
3 (0.03)
2.07 T2
201.16 221.07
0.18 0.09
0.31 0.24
1.34 1.37
- 3.88
545.91 472.23
(23.96) (3.19)
(39.31) (19.26)
0.01 0.06
136.67 {1856.10)
33.06 (39.95)
(13.60) 1.04
(1.53) 25.32
47 .49 109.85
(7.78) 39.33
0.50 1.61
B677.46 401.94
(43.75) (18.43)
633.71 383.51
(51.10) (75.12)
. (0.69)
(182.25) 4.58
(39.82) (35.76)
- 0.06
(100.56) .
- 2.00
4.40 0.31
(0.31) 164
2.39 0.29
(367.25) (102.69)
67.12 669.13
(107.67) (758.62)
(28.54) 28,55
(185.38) (212.29)
(254.47) (273.23)
12.00 7.58
18.25 10.67
30.25 18.25
22.70 18.18
0.07 0.07
0.48 -
7.00 -
30.25 18.25




RCCPL Private Limited
Formerly known as Reliance Cement Company Private Limited
CIN No : U26940MH2007PTC173458

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019 - Continued

Reconciliation of liabilities from finacing activities

(Rs. in crores)

Long term Short term
borrowings borrowings
As at 31.03.2018 232068 28.54
Proceeds 67.12 -
Repayments 107.67 28.68
Foreign exchange and other adjustment 14.92 0.14
As at 31.03.2019 2,295.05 -0.00
As per our attached report of even date.
For V.Sankar Aiyar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No.109208W
s .#'7 (/yc’; 47 .4 J J //‘, —

/(.? & (v/: x'#i “.” "'-;_._ - __!‘l‘- (N T W P
Ajay Gupta Harsh V. Lodha Bachh Raj Nahar
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No.090104 (DIN: 00394094) (DIN: 00049895)

Place : Kolkata run Abarwal
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Dated : 30.04.2019 Chief Financial Officer

N / / ;fm”z i

Manoj Kumar Mehta
Company Secretary



RCCPL Private Limited

Formerly known as Reliance Cement Company Private Limited

CIN No : U26940MH2007PTC173458

Statement of Changes in Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Amount.

Balance as at 31.03.2017
Changes in equity share capital during 2017-18
Balance as at 31.03.2018
Changes in equity share capital during 2017-18
Balance as at 31.03.2019

312.82

312.82

312.82

(Rs. in crores)

{b) Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus
= Total impact on
Particulars Securities
?:::'llt;ed O Other equity
g Account
As at March 31, 2017 -227.06 675.50 448.44
Adjustments:
Profit for the year 190.92 - 180.92
Other Comprehensive Income 0.07 0.07
Total Adjustments 190.99 - 190.99
As at March 31, 2018 (36.07) 675.50 639.43
Adjustments:
Profit for the year 138.38 138.38
Other Comprehensive Income (0.06) (0.08)
Total Adjustments 138.32 - 138.32
As at March 31, 2019 102.25 675.50 777.75

As per our attached report of even date.
For V.Sankar Aiyar & Co.

Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No.109208W

Ajay Gupta
Partner
Membership No.090104

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 30.04.2019
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RCCPL Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies
1.1 Company Overview

RCCPL Private Limited (Formerly Reliance Cement Company Private Limited) (“the Company”) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Birla Corporation Limited, the flagship company of the M. P. Birla group, w.e.f. 22™ August 2016. The
Company is incorporated in India having its registered office located at Industry House, 2" Floor, 159, Churchgate
Reclamation, Mumbai — 400 020. The Company is engaged in manufacturing and trading of different types of cement
and allied products. The Company had set up a fully integrated cement unit at Maihar (Madhya Pradesh) and
grinding unit at Butibori (Maharashtra) and Kundanganj (Uttar Pradesh). The Company also has limestone and coal
mines.

1.2 Basis of preparation and Presentation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis except for the
following:

i. Derivative financial instruments,

ii. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per Company’s normal operating cycle
(twelve months) and other criteria set out in the schedule Il to the Act.

Company's financial statements are presented in India Rupees, which is its functional currency and all values are
rounded to nearest crore, except when otherwise indicated.

1.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and notes thereto. The management believes that these
estimates and assumptions are reasonable and prudent. However, actual results could differ from these
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future period. An
overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely
to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed
have been disclosed in note no. 1.4. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included
in the relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial
statements.

1.4 Significant Estimates and judgments
a. Depreciation and useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of
the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives and residual values are based on technical evaluation and take into account anticipated
technological changes. Depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.




b. Deferred tax asset:

Recognition of net deferred tax asset on carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation and recognition
of MAT credit entittement during the year. The Company uses judgement to determine the amount of deferred
tax that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and business
developments. Also Refer Note no. 5 of the financial statement

c. Provisions and liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement to
existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change.

d. Estimation of defined benefits obligations — refer note no. 27

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include mortality and
withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in discount rates, anticipation of future
salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its
obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the
resulting calculations.

1.5 Property, Plant and equipment

Freehold land other than used for mining activity are carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognized when replaced.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line method on the basis of estimated useful
life of the assets except freehold land used for mining activity which is depreciated based on unit of production
method. The expected useful life and the expected residual value are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If
the expected useful life and the expected residual value of an asset are significantly different its previous estimates,
depreciation is being provided on the revised depreciable amount of the assets over the remaining useful life,

The management estimates the useful lives for the tangible assets as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful life
Leasehold land : Over the period of lease
Freehold mines : Units of production*
Building and roads 5 3 -60 years
Plant and machinery and electrical installations 10 - 25 years
Railway sidings ; 15 years
Office equipment ; 5 years
Computer and peripherals : 3 -6 years
Furniture and fixtures : 10 years
Motor vehicles : 8 years

For the above classes of assets, based on intemal assessment and technical evaluation carried out, the
management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets.

The residual values are not more 5% of the ariginal cost of the assets.
*Cost of freehold land used for mining activities are depreciated on the basis of quantity of minerals actually

extracted during the year with respect to the estimate%tppa_ntity of extractable mineral reserves.
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1.6 Capital work in progress
Capital work-in-progress, are carried at cost, less impairment loss, if any.

Mine development expenses includes expenses on account of prospecting, expenses for regulatory clearances,
exploration and evaluation of mineral pre-operative expenditure incidental / directly attributable to development,
borrowing cost etc. These expenses are carried forward and disclosed ‘Project development expenditure’ and will
be capitalized under appropriate head once the mine starts the commercial production.

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its intended
use, are considered as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under Capital work in progress.

1.7 Intangible Assets

Computer and other licensed software are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Mining Rights:

Mining Rights covered under are stated at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at cost less accumulated
amortisation & accumulated impairment loss, if any. Estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site at present value are also capitalized as separately as 'Mine Closure asset'.

Intangible assets are amortised using straight line method over its useful life except mining right which are amortised
based on unit of production method. The management estimates the useful lives for the intangible assets as follows:

Intangible asset Useful life
Computer softwares : 3 years
Licensed software : Over the license period
Mining rights and development - Unit of Production method

1.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible and
intangible) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset / cash
generating unit is made. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's net selling price and
its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. The smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit (CGU). An asset or CGU whose carrying value exceeds
its recoverable amount is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Assessment is also
done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an
asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.

1.9. Stripping cost

The stripping cost incurred during the production phase of a surface mine is recognised as an asset if such cost
provides a benefit in terms of improved access to ore in future periods and following criteria are met.

« It is probable that the future economic benefits (improved access to an ore body) associated with the
stripping activity will flow to the entity

* The entity can identify the component of an ore body for which access has been improved, and

 The costs relating to the improved access to that component can be measured reliably

The stripping activity asset is subsequently depreciated on a unit of production basis over the life of the identified
component of the ore body that became more accessible as a- f the stripping activity and is then stated at
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1.12

cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The expenditure which cannot be
specifically identified to have been incurred to access ore is charged to revenue, based on stripping ratio

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating lease.

Company as lessee:

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Company's general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Raw material, fuel, stores and spare parts, packing
materials and traded goods cost includes cost of purchases and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to
the present location and condition. Cost is determined using weighted average method.

Work-in-progress and finished goods cost comprises of raw material, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overhead. Cost is determined using weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial Instruments
1 Financial asset
I.  Initial recognition and Measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities, which are not fair value through
profit and loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

ii. Subsequent measurement
» Financial assets carried at amortised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on principal outstanding.




» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

A financial asset is subsequently measures at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal outstanding.

» Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through
profit and loss.

iii. Impairment of financial asseis

The Company assesses impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost based on expected credit
loss model (ECL). The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on trade receivables. The Company recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses historical loss experience to determine
the impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

2 Financial liabilities

i. Initial recognition and Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognized in profit and loss as finance
cost.

ii. Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. For trade
and other payable maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate
fair value due to short term maturity of these instruments.

3  Equity instruments

The Company measures its equity investment other in subsidiary at fair value through profit and loss. However,
where the Company's management makes an irrevocable choice on initial recognition to present fair value
gains and losses on specific equity instruments in other comprehensive income (currently no such choice
made), there is no subsequent reclassification on sale or otherwise, of fair value gains and losses to the
statement of profit and loss.

4 Interest income is recognized using effective interest rate method. Dividends are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established.

5 Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A
financial liability (or part of financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

1.13 Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate
swaps and cross currency swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks. The
Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at net of transaction cost incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction cost) and the redemption amount is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss over the period of borrowings using the effective interest rate.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date are classified as liabilities. The dividend
on these preference shares is recognized in statement of profit and loss as finance cost.

Employee Benefits

Employee benefits includes salaries and wages, provident fund, gratuity, compensated absences and other welfare
and terminal benefits.

Short term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These
benefit includes performance incentive, salaries and wages, bonus and leave travel allowance and other welfare
and terminal benefits.

Defined contribution plans:

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, superannuation, etc are recognized as on
expense during the year in which the employee renders the related service.

Compensated absence:

Benefits comprising compensated absences as per company policy constitute other long term employee benefits.
The liability for compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation done by an independent
actuary at the year end. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit
plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period
of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entittement and measures each unit separately to
build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the
prevailing market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable)
and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit
costs are categorized as follows:

- Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
- Net interest expense or income; and
- Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee
benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and losses are ac for as past service costs.
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1.147

The Company has taken the group policy with Reliance Nippon Life Insurance Company Limited to meet its
obligation towards gratuity. Liability with respect to the gratuity plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation
done by an independent actuary.

Foreign currency transactions and transalations
Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and Translations:

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the transactions dates.
Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates and
resultant exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss except exchange differences
relating certain long term monetary items outstanding as at 31%' March, 2016 in so far as they relate to the acquisition
of fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying amount of such, in accordance the option available to the Company
under Ind AS 101.

In case of an asset, expense or income where an advance is paid/received, the date of transaction is the date on
which the advance was initially recognised. If there multiple payments or receipts in advance, multiple dates of
transactions are determined for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Income tax
Current income tax

Current income tax represents the tax currently payable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment to
the tax in respect of the previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 supersedes Ind AS 11 - Construction Contracts, Ind AS 18 - Revenue and related interpretations and it
applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers. Ind AS 115 establishes a
five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.




Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies
the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.
In addition, the standard requires relevant disclosures.

The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the full retrospective method of adoption. The effect of the transition on
the current period has not been disclosed as the standard provides an optional practical expedient. The Company
did not apply any of the other available optional practical expedients.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Sale of goods

The Company recognises revenue from the sale of cement and related products when control of the goods are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration entitied in exchange for those goods.
Generally, control is transferred upon shipment of goods to the customer or when goods is made available to the
customer, provided transfer of title occurs and the Company has not retained any significant risks of ownership or
future obligations with respect to goods shipped. Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the Governement). Generally, the credit period varies
between 0-90 days from the shipment or delivery of goods as the case may be.

In case of discounts, rebates, credits, price incentives or similar terms, consideration are determined based on its
most likely amount, which is assessed at each reporting date.

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. It is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount that will be
received.

1.19

1.20

Government Grants

Grants and subsidies from the Government are recognised when there is reasonable certainty that the grant /
subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

When the grant or subsidy relating to income is recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them
on a systematic basis to the costs, which it is intended to compensate. VAT/GST incentives are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss under other operating revenues.

Grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in Non current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to Profit and loss on a straight line basis over the expected lives of related assets.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred in connection with borrowing. General and specific borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production or development of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.




1.21

1.22

1.23

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from events and whose existence is
only confirmed by one or more doubtful future events or when there is an obligation that is not recognised as a
liability or provision because it is not likely that on outflow of resources will be required

Segment reporting

Segment information is reported as per Indian Accounting Standard 108. The identification of operating segment is
consistent with performance assessment and resource allocation by the chief operating decision maker.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
(a) Ind AS 116-Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified in March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. It sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116
is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under Ind AS 17. Ind AS 116 requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under Ind AS 17.

(b) Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 containing Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments which clarifies the application and measurement requirements in Ind AS 12 when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments. The current and deferred tax asset or liability shall be recognized and
measured by applying the requirements in Ind AS 12 based on the taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates determined by applying this appendix. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019.

(c) Amendment to Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits:

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind AS 19 'Employee
Benefits' in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments
require an entity to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the
remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement and to recognise in profit or loss as
part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was
not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling. The amendment will come into force for
accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019, though early application is permitted.

(d) Amendment to Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes:

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind AS 12 'Income
Taxes'. The amendments require an entity to recognise the income tax consequences of dividends as defined
in Ind AS 109 when it recognises a liability to pay a dividend. The income tax consequences of dividends are
linked more directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to
owners. Therefore, an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or
events. The amendment will come into force for accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019

ments on its financial statement.

The Company is evaluating the effect of the above/a
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2B. Capital work in Progress

(Rs. in crores)

Particulars Asat Asat
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
A. Assets under construction 247.69 77.32
B. Expenditure incured on Project Development Pending Captilisation / allocation® 288.31 266.82
Sub total (A) 536.00 344.14
* Expenditure incurred on Project Development Pending Capitalisation / allocation:
Particula As at As at
PRy 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018
Pre operative expenes pending allocation:
Opening Balance 266.82 279.14
Salaries, wages and bonus 3.9 1.80
Finance costs # 13.04 10.21
Depreciation 0.13 0.25
Licences,Cleareances, Taxes etc 1.62 2.36
Other Expenses 5.08 2.61
Total pre-operative expenses 290.60 296.37
Less: Capitalised/charged during the year (2.29) (29.55)
Balances included in Capital work in progress 288.31 266.82
# The borrowing cost on specific borrowings has been capitalised at the rate applicable for respective borrowings.
2C. Other Intangible Assets
Computer Mining
Particulars golfaato Mining Right Closure Asset Total
Gross Block
As at March 31, 2017 3.53 6.93 3.3 13.77
Additions 0.69 - - 0.69
Disposal - - -
As at Mar 31, 2018 4.22 6.93 3.31 14.46
Additions - - = %
Disposal > = £ -
As at Mar 31, 2019 4,22 6.93 3.3 14.46
Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31, 2017 1.24 0.29 0.17 1.70
Charge for the year 0.78 0.14 0.14 1.06
Disposal - - -
As at Mar 31, 2018 2.02 0.43 0.31 2.76
Charge for the year 0.63 0.27 0.14 1.04
Disposal - - - -
As at Mar 31, 2019 2.65 0.70 0.45 3.80
|Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2017 2.29 6.64 3.14 12.07
As at Mar 31, 2018 2.20 6.50 3.00 11.70
As at Mar 31, 2019 1.57 6.23 2.86 10.66
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(Rs. in crores)

As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2018
3 Loans
(At amortized cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Leans to employees - 0.01
- 0.01
4 Other Non Current Financial Assets
(At amortized cost)
Bank Deposits * 1.52 1.21
Security deposits 22.76 20.06
VAT incentive receivables (Refer footnote of Note 11) 52.93 4472
77.21 65.99
* Bank Deposits represents Deposits marked lien in favour of Govt Authorities/ Bank Guarantee
5 Deferred tax asset / (liability)
The significant component and classification of deferred tax assets and liabilities on account of timing differences are:
Deferred tax assets on account of -
Trade receivables 1.48 1.48
Mine closure liability 1.35 1.24
ltems allowable on payment basis 13.54 11.72
Carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 318.26 364.58
33463 379.02
Deferred tax liabilities on account of -
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 283.51 259.00
Financial Liabilities / Assets at amortized cost 1.80 1.98
Net Deferred tax assets / (liability) 49.32 118.04
MAT credit entitlement 60.96 -
Total Deferred tax assets / (liability) 110.28 118.04
Based on the profitability projections of future years, the management is reasonably certain that it can
set off the carried forward tax losses/ unabsorbed depreciation, thus as at 31st March, 2019, Net
Deferred tax Asset is being continued to be recognised.Further,based on the profitability projections
in respect of MAT Credit aggregating to 60.96 crs ( including Rs 16.70 crs relating to FY 17-18 ) have
been recognised during the year.
Reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at Indian statutory Income tax rate to income tax expense reported in
statement of comprehensive Income
Reconcilation of Deferred tax asset
Opening deferred tax asset (Net) 118.04 -
Deferred tax (expense) / credit recorded in statement of profit and loss (7.79) 118.07
Deferred tax charge recorded in QCI 0.03 (0.03)
Closing deferred tax Assets, net 110.28 118.04
The major components of income tax expense
Current income tax charge (MAT) 4426 16.70
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 7.79 (118.07)
Income tax expenses reported in the statement of profit or loss 52.05 (101.37)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit
Accounting profit before income tax 190.43 89.55
Enacted income tax rate 31.20% 31.20%
Statutory income tax at enacted rate 59.42 27.94
Permanent disallowances 4.97 4.40
Deferred tax asset on IT losses not recognised earlier - (132.45)
IT order Impact 4.36 -
Tax effect on items chargable at differential rates & others - (17.96)
MAT credit entittement not recognised (16.70) 16.70
52.05 (101.37)
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6 Other Non-current Assets
( Unsecured, Considered Good )

Capital advances
Prepaid expenses
Deposit under protest
(Refer note no...... )

Includes advance to a Company where a director is interested

7 Inventories

Stores and spares
Packing materials
Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Fuel

Note: The above Inventory includes Material in transit as under
Raw materials

Fuel

Stores and spares

8 Investments
(Classified at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Investment in Mutual Funds
UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Direct Growth Plan (49,067 units) (PY: Nil)
Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Growth (1,28,456 units) (PY: Nil)

ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth (8,96,564 units) (PY* Nil)

IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund Direct Plan - Growth (47,55,790 units) (PY
SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth (20,514 units) (PY: Nil)
TATA Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growth (79,438 units) (PY: Nii)

9 Trade Receivables

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Significant increase in Credit Risk
Credit Impaired

Allowance for doubtful debts

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 80 days.

: Nil)

(Rs. in crores)

As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
82.65 38.64
2.57 -
11.04 -
96.26 38.64
22.33 -
65.13 51.44
7.42 574
37.35 15.73
28.02 23.79
32.89 26.21
2717 3577
197.98 158.68
6.39 1.88
0.20 1.97
0.99 0.03
7.58 3.88
15.02
26 64
2478 -
5.04 -
6.01 -
23.39 -
100.88 -
50.92 27.21
34.09 33.84
4.75 4,75
(4.75) (4.75)
85.01 61.05

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any
trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member,
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(Rs. in crores)

As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2018
10 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash on hand 0.07 0.07
Cheques on hand 048 -
Balances with banks:
- On current / cash credit accounts - Balances with banks 2270 18.18
- Deposits 8.52 1.21
Less : Shown under other non current financial assest (1.52) (1.21)

30.25 18.25
Earmarked balances held as margin money 1.52 1.21
Deposits with original maturity with more than 12 months maturity 1.52 1.21

Cash & cash equivalent includes deposit maintained by the company with banks,which can be withdrawn by company at any point of
time without prior notice or penalty on the principal

11 Other Current Financial Assets
(At amortized cost)

VAT Incentive receivable® 263.30 410.88

263.30 410.88

* The Company’s manufacturing plants at Maihar (Madhya Pradesh), Kundanganj (Uttar Pradesh) and Butibori (Maharashra ) are eligible for
government grant in the form of incentives of 75% in case of Madhya Pradesh, 80% in case of Uttar Pradesh and 25% in case of Maharashtra
of the VAT / CST / GST pursuant to Industrial Promotion Policy, 2010 (MP Mega Project Policy), Infrastructure Investment Policy, 2012 (UP
Mega Project Policy) and Package Scheme of Incentive 2007 ( Maharashra 2007 scheme), respectively.

12 Other Current Assets
( Unsecured, Considered Good )

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 0.82 0.82
Prepaid expenses 4.44 168
Advance to vendors 3547 45.51
Advance to employees 0.28 0.52
Balances with Government & Statutory Authorities 9.18 34.73

50.19 83.26
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Equity Share Capital

Authorised :

40,00,00,000 (31 March 2018- 40,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 /- each

Issued, subscribed & fully paid up

31,28,23,000 ( 31 March 2018- 31,28,23,000 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 /- each

(a) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

(Rs. in crores)

As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
400.00 400.00
400.00 400.00
312.82 312.82
312.82 312.82

i) The Company's equity shares have a par value of Rs. 10/- each. 'Holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
ii} In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive assets of the company, if any remaining
after distribution of all preferential accounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(b) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding
At the beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

c) Shares held by Holding Company
Birla Corporation Limited
% holding

d) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
Birla Corporation Limited
% holding

Long Term Borrowings
At Amortised Cost

From Banks
Secured
Loan from Banks
Rupee term loans
Faoreign currency term loans

Unsecured
Loan from Banks
Foreign currency term loans

From Others - Secured
Finance Lease Obligations
(refer note no...........)

From related party
10% Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares*
* Subscribed by Birla Corportation Limited (Holding Company)

Less : Current maturites of long term borrowings at the year end (Refer note no 19)

Secured
Loan from Banks

Rupee term loans

Foreign currency term loans
Unsecured
Loan from Banks

Foreign currency term loans
From Other

Finance Lease Obligations

—,
| r \
7

31,28,23,000 31,28,23,000
31,28,23,000 31,28,23,000
31,28,23,000 31,28,23,000
100% 100%
31,28,23,000 31,28,23,000
100% 100%
1,958.59 1.944.19
130.25 159.78
103.19 116.71

3.01 -
100.00 100.00
2,285.04 2,320.68
89.90 47.08
55.35 36.52
20.64 1945

0.02 -
165.91 103.08
2,129.13 2,217.62
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(Rs. in crores)
Rupee term loans from banks (Secured) - Consortium
Term loan of Rs 1614.82 crores (includes processing fees of Rs.9.64 crores netted of above) (rate of interest @ 1yr MCLR plus spread of 0.40%
to 0.90% p.a) (including current maturities of Rs.79.87 crores) from Bank (s) is secured by way of first charge on all present and future movable
and immovable fixed assets pertaining to projects at Maihar, Madhya Pradesh and Kundanganj, Uttar Pradesh and Coal mines located at Sial
Ghogri, Madhya Pradesh, ranking pari passu with other lender bank (s) and second charge on entire current assets of the Company ranking pari
passu with other lender bank (s). The loan is repayable in 39 unequal quarterly installments starting from June 2019 and ending on December
2028 in the following manner:
Rs.159.74 crores repayable in 8 equal quarterly installments from June, 2019 to March, 2021
Rs.127.79 crores repayable in 4 equal quarterly installments from June, 2021 to March, 2022
Rs.159.74 crores repayable in 4 equal quarterly installments from June, 2022 to March, 2023
Rs.351.42 crores repayable in 8 equal quarterly installments from June, 2023 to March, 2025
Rs.670.92 crores repayable in 14 equal quarterly installments from June, 2025 to September, 2028
Rs.145.21 crores repayable in December, 2028

. Rupee Term Loan from Axis Bank

Term Loan of Rs 290 crores (including processing fees of Rs. 4.55 crores netted off above) (rate of interest @ 6M MCLR plus 40 bps p.a)
(including current maturities of Rs.2,03 crores).This loan is secured by way of subservient charge on all present and future movable and
immovable fixed assets of the Company except assets relating to Maihar, Madhya Pradesh and Kundanganj, Uttar Pradesh. Further the loan is
secured by Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company viz., Birla Corporation Limited. The loan is repayable in 36 unequal quarterly
installiments starting from November, 2019 and ending on August, 2028 in the following manner:

Rs.2.03 crores repayable in 2 equal quarterly instaliments from November, 2019 to February, 2020
Rs.4.06 crores repayable in 2 equal quarterly installments from May, 2020 to August, 2020
Rs.8.12 crores repayable in 2 equal quarterly installments from November, 2020 to February, 2021
Rs.24.36 crores repayable in 4 equal quarterly installments from May, 2021 to February, 2022
Rs.48.72 crores repayable in 6 equal quarterly installments from May, 2022 to August, 2023
Rs.20.01 crores repayable in 2 equal quarterly instaliments from Nov, 2023 to February, 2024
Rs.182.70 crores repayable in 18 equal quarterly installments from May, 2024 to August, 2028

. Rupee Term Loan from Axis Bank (WHRS) - Rs.83 crores

Term Loan of Rs.89.09 crores (amount outstanding on 31.03.2020)(includes processing fees of Rs. 1.12 crores netted of above) (rate of interest
One Year MCLR) (Including current maturities of Rs.8 crores) is secured by entire movable and immovable fixed assets of Maihar, Madhya
Pradesh, both present and future ranking pal passu with other lender banks .The loan is repayable in 39 equal quarterly installments of Rs.2
crores from 30.06.2019 till 31.12.2028 and an instaliment of Rs.3 crores payable in March'2029.

. Foreign Currency Loans from banks (Secured)

External Commercial Borrowing from DBS Bank Ltd, Singapore of Rs. 71.14 crores (including processing fee of Rs.0.54 crores netted of above)
(rate of interest 1M LIBOR plus 175 bps p.a) (including current maturities of Rs. 23.71 crores) is secured by way of first charge on all present and
future movable and immovable fixed assets pertaining to Maihar and Gondavali in Madhya Pradesh, Kundanganj in Uttar Pradesh, ranking pari
passu with other lender banks (s) and second charge on entire current assets of the Maihar and Kundanganj ranking pari passu with other lender
banks (s). The loan is repayable in remaining 12 equal quarterly installments (June, 2019 to March, 2022).

External Commercial Borrowings from SBI (Mauritis) Limited of Rs. 59.65 crores (rate of interest 8M LIBOR plus 250 bps p.a) (including current
maturities of Rs.31.64 crores) is secured by way of of first charge on all present and future movable and immovable fixed assets pertaining to
Maihar and Gondavali in Madhya Pradesh and Kundanganj in Uttar Pradesh ranking pari passu with other lender bank (s) and second charge on
entire current assets of Maihar and Kundanganj ranking pari passu with other lender banks (s). The loan is repayable in remaining 7 quarterly
unegual installments in the following manner:

Rs.14.00 crores repayable in 2 equal quarterly instaliments from June, 2019 to September, 2019

Rs.17.64 crores repayable in 2 equal quarterly installments from December, 2019 to March, 2020

Rs.28.01 crores repayable in 3 equal quarterly installments from June, 2020 to December, 2020

. Foreign Currency Loans from banks (Unsecured)

External Commercial borrowing from Deutsche Bank, Germany of Rs. 103.19 crores (rate of interest 6M LIBOR plus 175 bps p.a) (including
current maturities of Rs. 20.64 crores) is secured by way of Corporate Guarantee of the Holding Company viz., Birla Corporation Limited. The loan
is repayable in remaining 10 semi-annual equal instaliments.

. 10% cumulative Preference Share (unsecured)

100 lakhs Preference shares of Rs. 100 each are held by the holding company viz., Birla Corporation Limited carrying voting rights as prescribed
under section 47 (2) of the Companies Act 2013, . The preference shares will be redeemed in December 2021, The non convertable preference
share carry preference share right vis-a-vis equity shares of the company with respect to payment of dividend and repayment of capital in the
event of winding up.
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Other Non Current Financial Liabilities

Security Deposits from customers
Security Deposits - Others
Interest accrued Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital

Provisions

Provisions for employee benefits
Gratuity
Compensated absences

Others
Provision for mine closure expenses

Movement of Provision for mine closure expenses
Balance al the beginning of the year

Additions

Amount paid

Balance at the end of the year

(Rs. in crores)

As at As at

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
125.04 102.16
7.62 3.72
= 14.29
133.56 120.17
0.25 0.85
6.47 529
434 398
11.06 10.12
3.98 3.66
0.36 0.32
4,34 3.08

Provision for mine closure expenses represents estimates made towards the expecled expenditure for restoring the mining area and other
obligatory expenses as per the approved mine closure plan. The timing of the outflow with regard to the said matter would be in a phased

manner based on the progress of excavation of minerals and consequential restoration cost.

Borrowings

Secured
Working capital loans repayable on demand from banks*

Unsecured
Buyers credit from banks in foreign currency**

20.00

8.54

28.54

Working Capital Loans of Rs. 20.00 crores from banks are secured by ranking pari passu hyphothecation of Current Assets viz. Raw Material,
Stock in trade, Consumable Stores and Books Debts, both Present & Future and further by way of second charge on movable and immovable
fixed assets pertaining to Maihar, Madhya Pradesh and Kundanganj, Uttar Pradesh and Coal mines located at Sial Ghogri, Madhya Pradesh,

ranking pari passu with other lender banks.
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(Rs. in crores)

As at As at
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
18 Trade payables
Trade payables-Others 199.57 187 08
Trade payables-Related Parties 13.03 28.80
Total Outstanding dues to micro, small and medium enterprises 3.22 0.18
215.82 216.06
Details of dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 to
the extent of confirmation received.
The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year.
Principal 3.22 0.19
Interest - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment = -
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without B )
adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting } i}
year; and
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are aclually paid to the small } }
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
19 Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note no. 14) 165.91 103.06
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.55 1.77
Interest accrued Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital 26.97 B
Employee Benefits Payable 15.85 13.26
Retention money payable 22.74 14.59
Payable for capital expenditure 20.39 16.19
MTM on Foreign exchange forward contracts 018 0.09
Others Payable 159.57 150.42
413.16 299.38
20 Provisions
Provisions for employee benefits
Compensated absenses 0.49 0.53
0.49 0.53
21 Other Current Liabilities
Advance from Customers 31.86 30.62
Statutory dues payable 55.54 B64.55
87.40 95.17

=
x a1\
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22 Revenue from Operations

Sale of products

Finished goods*
Cement
Clinker

Traded goods
Gypsum

Other Operating Revenue-
Scrap Sales
Incentives and subsidies
(Refer footnote of Note no 11)

(Rs. in crores)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018

2,225.52 1,958.82

170.39 42.64

0.45 1.07

2,396.36 2,002.53

3.10 1.37

149.44 181.15

2,548.90 2,185.05

* In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS/Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, sales for the period upte April 1, 2017 to June 30,
2017 presented herein are inclusive of excise duty of Rs.67.49 crores. Consequent to applicability of Goods and Service Tax (GST) w.e.f. 1st
July, 2017, sales are shown net of GST in accordance with requirements of relevant Ind AS. The sales net of excise / GST for the year

ended 31.03.2019.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

a) The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" replacing Ind AS 18 "Revenue" for reporting periods beginning 1st
April, 2018 using cummalative catch up transition method. The application of said Ind AS 115 did not have material impact on measurement of
revenue and other related items in the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019. Other relevant disclosures in terms of said Ind AS

115 are stated herein:

b) The disaggregation of the Company's revenue from customers are given in note no. 22.

¢) Information about Receivables, Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from
Contracts with Customers:
Trade Receivables

Contract Liabilities
Advances from Customers

d) Reconciling the amount of Revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss with the Contracted Price:

Revenue as per contracted price (including Excise Duty)
Less: Sales Claims

Less: Rebate & Discounts

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Other Operating Revenues

Revenue from Operations

Timing of Revenue recognition

Goods or Services transferred at a point in time '
Total Revenue from Operations

e) The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation

{unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at Balance Sheet date are, as follows:
Advances from Customers

85.01 61.05

31.86 30.62

2.527.37 1,898.07
131.01 104 .46
2,396.36 2,002.53
152.54 182.52

254890  ___ 2,18505

2,548.90 2,185.05

2,548.90

31.86

2,185.05

30.62

Mariagement expects that the entire transaction price allotted to the unsatisfied contract as at the end of the reporting period will be recognised as

revenue during the next financial year.
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(Rs. in crores)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
23 Other Income
Interest income
from Fixed Deposits 2.39 0.19
Other Interest 1.11 1.16
Insurance Claim Received 1.92 254
Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund (FVTPL) 0.32 -
Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund 4.40 0.31
Miscellaneous Income 1.32 0.62
11.46 4.82
24 Cost of Materials Consumed
Raw materials consumed : 405.93 241.80
25 Purchases of traded goods
Purchases of traded goods - Gypsum 0.44 0.98
0.44 0.98
26 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Stock at the end of the year
Finished goods 32.89 26.21
Work in Progress 28.02 23.79
60.91 50.00
Stock at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 26.21 26.56
Work in Progress 23.79 40.38
50.00 66.94
(10.21) 16.94
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(Rs. in crores)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries and wages 88.59 84.88
Contribution to provident and other funds 3.28 3.04
Gratuity 1.36 1.14
Compensated absences 2.07 1.61
Staff welfare expenses 2.85 2.89
98.15 93.56
Defined Contribution Plan:
The Company has recognized the following amount in the statement of profit and loss / Capital work in progress / Intangible
assets for the year
Provident Fund 1.96 1.84
Superannuation Fund 0.06 0.08
Pension Fund 0.70 0.65
Gratuity
Change in benefit obligations
Benefit obligation at the begining 5.80 495
service cost 1.37 1.13
interest expense 0.42 0.34
Past service cost plan amendments = 0.01
Actuarial (gains) / losses (0.02) (0.28)
Benefits paid (0.55) (0.25)
Benefit obligation at the end 7.12 5.90
Change in Plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 5.05 4.89
interest income 0.44 0.34
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (0.11) (0.18)
Employers Contributions i 1.50 -
Benefits paid -
Fair value of plan assets at end 6.88 5.05
Funded status surplus/ (deficit) -0.24 -0.85
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss
service cost 1.37 1.13
Past service cost- plan amendments - 0.01
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability / asset (0.01) =
Charged to P&L 1.36 1.14
Remesurement recognised in OCI
Actuarial (gains) / losses (0.02) (0.28)
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 0.11 (0.18)
0.09 -0.10
Acturial assumptions
Mortality - Indian assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate
Discount rate 7.30% 7.50%
Salary escalation rate 7.50% 7.50%
Withdrawal rate 4.00% 4.00%
Sensitivity analysis as on 31st March 2019
Defined benefit obligation on plus 100 bps (0.61) (0.50)
Defined benefil obligation on minus 100 bps 0.71 0.58
Sensitivity analysis as on 31st March 2017
Defined benefit obligation on plus 50 bps 0.70 (0.24)
Defined benefit obligation on minus 50 bps (0.61) 0.26
At 31st March 2019, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 10.15 years. The distribution of the timing of
benefits payment i.e., the maturity analysis of the benefit payments is as follows:
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations
Within 1 year 0.42 0.42
1-2 year 0.52 0.42
2-3 year 0.65 0.51
3-4 year 0.65 0.76
4-5 year 0.67 0.69
7.11

5-6 year 8.96
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Finance Costs

Interest on Term Loans

Interest on Working capital Loans

On Deposits and Others

Preference Shares Dividend Expenses

Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs

Other borrowing costs
Unwinding finance cost

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Less: Transfer to Capital work-in-progress

30 Other Expenses

Manufacturing Expenses

Stores, Spare Parls Consumed

Packing Material Consumed

Power & Fuel

Excise duty

Repairs to buildings

Repairs to machinery

Royalty & Cess

Freight & Material Handling on Inter Unit Transfer
Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty & Cess on Finished Goods
Other Manufacturing Expenses

Selling and Administration Expenses
Discount, selling and distribution expenses
Brand Royalty
Freight and forwarding expenses
Insurance
Rent
Repairs to Other Assets
Rates & Taxes
Advertisement and publicity expenses
Payments to auditors

Audit fees

Certification

Reimbursement of expenses
Directors Fees
Net loss on foreign currency translations and translation
Professional fees
Loss on extinguishment of financial liabilities
Bank Charges
Miscellaneous expenses

(Rs. in crores)

Year ended

Year ended

178.05 203.02
0.08 1.34
6.76 5.15

12.68 10.96
3.45 -

1.00 0.60
1.79 1.61
203.81 222.68
156.62 154.63
1.04 1.06
(0.13) (0.25)
157.53 155.44
63.64 54.06

91.17 78.31

504.76 438.95

: 67.49
2.97 253

15.59 13.74

57.47 33.84

81.19 69.79

- (1.14)

28.82 19.64

62.78 60.25

2556 2097

480.38 408.47
2.57 1,79
8.85 7.85

13.66 13.47
1.86 6.65
20.56 17.42
0.15 0.15
0.06 0.03
0.01 0.01
0.39 0.35
4.81 2.50
483 4.24
. 10.48
1.47 211
4143 34.97
1,514.98 1,368.92
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31 Earning per Share

The computation of basic / diluted earning/ ( loss) per share is set out below
Net Profit / (Loss) after current and deferred tax

No of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

No of Shares outstanding at the end of the period

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

EPS (Rs.) - Basic and Diluted

32 Commitments and Contingencies

a. Contingent Liabilities:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

i) Cenvat Credit taken on outward transportation of finished goods. Appeal filed before
Comissioner ( Appeals)

iiy Demand for Entry tax including interest thereon under Bihar Value Added Tax Act 2005.
Appeal file before Additional Commissioner ( Appeals )

iii) Dissallowance of transition amount claimed under the Bihar Goods and Services Tax
Act, 2017. Appeal filed before Comissioner ( Appeals)

iv) Demand of Service tax on adjustment made on account of gross calorific value
( GCV) of the coal from supplier. Appeal pending before CESTAT, New Delhi

v) Demand from Collector of Stamps, Chhindwara mine lease related to Sial Ghogri

vi) Appropriation of Bank guarantee as per clause 10.1 of Coal Mine Development and
Production Agreement ( CMDPA ) in respect of Sial Ghoghri Coal Mine under Coal
bearing Areas ( A&D) Act, 1957 being contested before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi

vii) Other Claims / Dispute pending in various legal forum

b. Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not

provided for (net of advances)

(Rs. in crores)

Year ended

31.03.2018

138.38
31,28,23,000
31,28,23,000
31,28,23,000

4.42

0.24

1.91

0.68

293

4.38

10.12

0.43

815.30

Year ended
31.03.2018

190,82
31,28,23,000
31,28,23,000
31,28,23,000

6.10

4.38

043

118.90

In respect of the matter in note no. 32(a), future cash outflows are determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending at various

forums / authorities. Furthermore, there is no possibilities of any reimbursements to be made to the company from any third party .

33 Assets pledged as security

Current

Financial assets - Trade Receivables
Non-financial assets - Inventories

Total current assets pledged as security

Non-current

Land

Buildings

Plant & Machinery

Others Tangible Assets

Total non-currents assets pledged as security

cwip

*;'f"" Ko oy )

—— R

85.01 61.05
197.98 158,68
282.99 219.73
280.83 280,74
371.85 384.64

1,616.44 1,677.98
250.48 281.77
2,519.61 2,625.13
536.00 34414
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Related Party disclosures as per Ind AS 24

Birla Corporation Limited

Purchase of goods

Purchase of services

Brand Royalty paid

Sale of goods

Reimbursement of expenses paid

Provision for Dividend on Preference shares (Expense)
Balances outstanding

Trade payable

Provision for Dividend on Preference shares payable
Corporate Guarantee given to Banks #

# to the extent of loan outstanding

Vindhya Telelinks Ltd
(Entity in repect of which Holding Company is an Associate)

Sale of goods
Purchase of goods

Balances outstanding
Trade payable

Key Managerial Persons (KMP)
Executive Director
Mr. Bachh Raj Nahar

Non Excecutive Directors

Mr. Harsh V. Ladha, Mr. V. Swarup, Mr. A, Srinivasan
Mr. Anup Singh, Mr. P. Majumdar, Ms. Chitkala Zutshi,
Sitting fee paid to non executive directors

(Rs. in crores)

Year ended

31.03.2019

135.85
29.25
25.66

287.53

3.26
12.68

12.91

26.97
393.19

0.71
0.78

0.12

0.39

Year ended
31.03.2018

28.70
18.57
20.97
60,14

049
10.96

28.80

14.29
406.71

0.77
0.19

0.35
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{Rs. in crores)
Operating Segment as per Ind AS 108

The managing director of the company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS.108 - Operating
Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by
industry classes. Accordingly, segment information has been presented. In the opinion of the management, there is only one segment -"Cement &
clinker” which includes products of similar nature, risks and returns. So disclosure of primary segment and geographical segment are not applicable.

Fair value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Current & Non Current)
31st March 2018 31st March 2018
Partculars FvrpL | Amodized | pyyp | Amorized
— Cost I Cost

Financial Assets
Investment
- Mutual Funds 100.88 -
Trade Receivables 85.01 61.05
Loans Given - 0.01
Cash and Cash Equivalents 30.25 18.25
VAT Incentive receivable 316.23 45560
Bank Deposits 1.52 1.21
Security deposits 2276 20.06
Total Financial Assets 100.88 455.77 - 556.18
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 2,295.04 2,349.22
Trade Payables 215.82 216.06
Interest accrued on Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital 26.97 14.29
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.55 177
Employee Benefits Payable 15.85 13.26
Retention money payable 2274 14.59
Payable for capital expenditure 20.39 16.19
MTM on Foreign exchange forward contracts 0.18 0.09
Others Payable - 159.57 - 150.42
Security Deposits from customers - 125.94 - 102.16
Security Deposits - Others - 7.62 - 3.72
Total Financial Liabilities 0.18 2,891.49 0.09 2,881.68

Other Notes

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowings, and other
financial iabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the shori-term maturities of these instruments.

For Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to their fair values

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged In a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values for loans were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as Level 3 fair values in the
fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risks, which has been assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on the discou ited cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as Level 3 fair
values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including own credit risks, which was assessed as on the balance sheet
date 1o be insignificant,

During the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no
transfer into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements

.4
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Explanation to the fair value hierarchy

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, quoted investments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. All assets and
liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

(Rs. in crores)

Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments
(including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting
period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV,

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration included in level 3

Assets and Labilities measured at Fair Value - recurring fair value measurements

Particula 31sl March 2019 31st March 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Leve| 3
Financial Assets
Investment
- Mutual Funds 100.88 - - - - -
Foriegn Exchange Contract (MTM) - - = - « =
Total Financial Assets 100.88 - - . - -
Financial Liabilities
Foriegn Exchange Contract (MTM) 0.18 - - 0.09 - -
Total Financial Liabilities 0.18 - - 0.09 - -

Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit disk.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity

financial statements.

manages the risk and the impact of hedge accounting in the

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, frade receivables,|Ageing analysis levers_ltﬂcaEO:dlt |9f it ban:
derivative financial assets and other financial assets |Credit rating b L i
letter of credit
Avallability of committed
Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts |credit lines and borrowing

limites

Market risk - foreign exchange

Future commercial transactions recognised financial
assels and liabilities not denominated in Indian rupee
(INR)

Cash flow forecasting
Sensitivity analysis

Forward foreign exchange
contracts
Foreign currency options
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(Rs. in crores)
Capital management

(a) Risk management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:
- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the following ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by Total equity (as shown in the balance sheet)
The gearing ratios were as follows:

; 31 March 31 March
Particulars 2019 2018
Debt 2,295.04 2,349.22
Less: Cash and bank balances including mutual fund 131.13 18.25
Net Debt 2,163.92 2,330.97
Total Equity 1,080.57 952.25
Net debt to equity ratio 1.98 2.45

Note- Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowing including current maturities of long term debt

Credit risk

The credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counter party failing to discharge an obligation. The credit risk is controlled by analysing credit
Iimits and credit worthiness of customers on continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted,obtaining necessary approvals for credit and taking
security deposits from trade channels.

Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivable. The company follows the simplified approach for recognisation of
impairment loss. The expected credit loss is based on historical loss experience and analysis of individual customer account balances.

i As at As at

Age of recelvabies

Aas of receivables 31032019 | 31.03.2018
Within the credit period 59.82 50.09
0-30 days past due 15.69 8.07
31-80 days past due 587 2.55
61-180 days past due 1.87 234
More than 180 days past due 6.51 275

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance -

As at As at
31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018
Balance at the beginning of the year (4.75) (4.75)
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables - =
Balance at the end of the year (4.75) (4.75)
Liguidity Risk

The Company determines its liquidity requirement in the short, medium and long term. This is done by drawings up cash forecast for short term and
long term needs.

The Company manage its liquidity risk in a manner so as to meet its normal financial obligations without any significant delay or stress. Such risk is
managed through ensuring operational cash flow while at the same time maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalent position. The management
has arranged for diversified funding sources and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity monitoring future cash flow and liquidity on a
regular basis. Surplus funds not immediately required are invested in certain mutual funds and fixed depasit which provide flexibility to liquidate.
Besides, it generally has certain undrawn credit facilities which can be assessed as and when required: such credit facilities are reviewed at regular
basis.
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(Rs. in crores)

Maturity Analysis for financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities
As at 31 March 2019

y Less than | 1yearsto 5 | More than 5
Particulars On Demand Orie year ey e Total
Non-derivative
Trade payables - 215.82 - . 215.82
| Borrowings
Rupee Term Loan - 89.90 680.39 1,203.61 1,973.90
Foreign Currency Term Loan - 75.99 157 9g - 233.98
Finance lease obligations - 0,02 013 285 3.01
Prefrence Share Capital - - 100.00 - 100.00
Other financial liabilities
Payable on behalf of employees - 15.85 - - 15.85
Interest accrued on Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital - 26.97 - - 26.97
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 1.55 - = 1.55
Security Deposits from customers® - - - 125.94 125.94
Security Deposits - Others - - 7.62 - 7.62
Retention money payable - 2274 - - 22.74
Payable for capital expenditure - 20.39 - - 20.39
Others Payable - 159.57 - - 159.57
Total - 628.81 946.13 1,332.41 2,907.34
Derivative
Foreign Exchange forwards contracts - 0.18 = - 0.18
As at 31 March 2018
Particulars On Demand % L@&Lﬂ_@ _N&f%lﬂ't:gﬁ Total

Non-derivative
Trade payables 3 216.06 - = 216.06
Borrowings
Rupee Term Loan - 47.08 523.31 1,380.37 1,960.76
Foreign Currency Term Loan - 55.98 201.06 19.45 276.49
Prefrence Share Capital . - 100.00 - 100.00
Working Capital Loan 20.00 - - 20.00
Buyers Credit 8.54 - - 8.54
Other financial liabilities
Interest accrued on Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital - 14,29 - 14.29
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 1.77 - - 1.77
Payable on behalf of employees - 13.26 - 13.26
Security Deposits from customers - - - 102.16 102.16
Security Deposits - Others - - 3.72 3.72
Retention money payable - 1459 - 14.59
Payable for capital expenditure - 16.19 - - 16.19
Others Payable - 150.42 - - 150.42

Total - 543.88 842.39 1,511.98 2,898.25
Derivative
Foreign Exchange forwards contracts 0.09 0.09

The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements (if any) The
interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the tables above reflect market forward interest rates at the respective reporting dates and these
amounts may change as market interest rates change. The future cash flows on derivative instruments may be different from the amount in the above
lables as exchange rates change. Except for these financial liabilities, it is not expected that cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur
significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts. When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined with
reference to conditions existing at the reporting date.

Security Deposit classified under more than 5 years maturity pertain to " Dealer Trade Deposit " which are refundable only after surrender of dealership
subject to clearance of outstanding dues
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
comprises three type of risks: Foreign Exchange Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Other Price Risk.

Foreign Exchange Risk

(Rs. in crores)

changes in market prices. Market risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions of imports and borrowing primarily with respect to USD
and Euro. The foreign currency transaction risk are managed through selective hedging programmes by way of forward contracts, currency swaps and

interest rate swaps including for underlying transactions having firm commitments or highly probable forecast of crystalisation.

The Company has taken certain Swap instruments for hedging the borrowings in foreign currency and has recognised a gain/loss in the Statement of
Profit & Loss on measurement of said derivative instruments at fair value. On the reporting date, the fair value of derivative instrument is measured

based upon valuation received from the authorised dealer (Bank).

Exposure to currency risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows:

Particulars

31st March 201

us

INR

EUR

INR

el

Financial Liabilities

Foreign Currency Term Loan

Buyer's Credit

Interest Accrued but not due

Trade Payables

Other current liabilities

Derivative Instrument

Foreign Exchange Contract - Against payable

Net Exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities)

Derivative Instrument
Foreign Exchange Contract - Against firm commitment

233.98

1.5
0.30

235.83

0.03

53.47

0.02

* represents USD 43716
** represents GBP 2450

Particulars

31st March 2018

Usb

0

EUR

INR

F
=]

|

Financial Liabilities

Foreign Currency Term Loan
Buyer's Credit

Interest Accrued but not due
Trade Payables

Derivative Instrument

Foreign Exchange Contract - Against payable

Net Exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities)
Denvative Instrument

Foreign Exchange Contract - Against firm commitment

4.24
0.13
0.03
0.04

(0.13)

276.49
8.54
177
2.46

(8.54)

4.31

280.72

373

9.55
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Sensitivity Analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR against USD and EUR as at 31st March would have affected the measurement of
financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Partouars nglil:i’;y Profit b :an-ﬂ Profil belfmre e
o taxe O | Other Equity tax % other Equity
USD Sensitivity (Increase) 5% (11.79) (9.28) (14.04) (11.04)
USD Sensitivity (Decrease) 5% 11.79 9.28 14.04 11.04
EUR Sensitivity (Increase) 5% (0.13) (0.10) (0.19) (0.15)
EUR Sensitivity (Decrease) 5% 0.13 010 019 0.15
GBP Sensitivity (Increase) 5% - * . -
GBP Sensitivity (Decrease) 5% * - * *

* Below Rounding Off Norms adopted by the Company

Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to risk due to interest rate fluctuation on long term borrowings. Such borrowings are based on fixed as well as floating
interest rate. Interest rate risk is determined by current market interest rates, projected debt servicing capability and view on future interest rate. Such
interest rate risk is actively evaluated and is managed through portfolio diversification and exercise of prepayment / refinancing options where
considered necessary,

The Company is also exposed to interest rate risk on surplus funds parked in fixed deposits and Investments viz. mutual funds, bonds. To manage
such risks, such investments are done mainly for short durations, in line with the expected business requirements for such funds.

Exposure to interest rate risk

Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Fixed Rate Instruments
10% Cumulative Preference Share 100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
Variable Rate Instruments
Other Borrowings 2,207.88 2,237.25
Net Exposure 2,207.88 2,237.25

Sensitivity Analysis

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular exchange rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

31st March 2019

Particulars Sensitivity %ﬁ Impact on
Analysis p—-—lﬂ other equity
Interest Rate Increase by 0.50% (11.04) (8.68)
Interest Rate Decrease by 0.50% 11.04 8.68

31st March 2018

Particulars Sensitivity L_r:_%gj_fqa Impact on
Analysis p% other equity
Interest Rate Increase by 0.50% (11.19) (8.80)
Interest Rate Decrease by 0.50% 11.19 8.80
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(Rs. in crores)
Operating leases

Obligations on long term, non-cancellable operating leases
The lease rentals charged during the period is as under:

Year ended | Year ended
31 March 31 March
2018 2018
Lease Rentals 0.20 0.37
Period of lease various various
As at As at
Future minimum lease payable 31.03.2019 | 31.03.2018
Not later than 1 year 0.22 0.14
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 0.16 0.15
Later than 5 years - -

The Company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises ( residential, office, stores, godown), etc. The Leasing
arrangements which are cancellable ranging between eleven months to ten years generally, or longer and are usually renewable by mutual consent on
mutually agreeable terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as rent in the statement of profit & loss.

Assets acquired under Finanance Lease.

The Company has entered into finance lease arrangement for Solar Power generating equipment for a term of 25 years. The legal title vests with the
Lessor The company has an option to buy the asset at the end of the lease term. There are no restrictions imposed by Lease arrangement. Future
Mimimum lease payment under this contract together with the present value of Net Minimum Lease Payments have been disclosed below.

As at 31st March 2019 As at 31 rch 2018
3 ; Present : resent
Baticulars %m_ng_g_ Value of Min Lease Value of

ayments MLP Payments MLP
Within one year 0.33 002 - -
After one year but not more than five years 133 013 - =
More than five years 6.73 2,85 - -
Total Mininmum Lease payments 8.39 3.01 - -
Less: Amount representing finance charges 5.38 o o
Present value of minimum lease payments 3.01 3.01 - -

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on 30th April 2018

As per our attached report of even date.
For V.Sankar Aiyar & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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